
City of Lynchburg 
Procurement Division 
900 Church Street 
Lynchburg, Virginia  24504 
Telephone No.: (434) 455-3970 
Fax No.: (434) 845-0711                     
                                                    Addendum for Invitation for Bids 

College Hill WTP Interior Renovations 
2016-075 

Date: 05/12/2016 
From: Lisa Moss, Buyer VCA 
RE: Addendum No.  1 
 
This Addendum supplements and amends the original Plans and Specifications and shall be taken into 
account in preparing proposals and shall become a part of the Contract Documents. The Bidder shall 
indicate receipt of this Addendum and all previously issued Addenda on the Bid Form.   
 

Questions and answers: 

1. If there is one electrical panel on each floor can it be utilized for flooring sub? If not, will the 
contractor be responsible for providing a generator?  

Answer: The electrical panels can be used for flooring sub provided it has enough capacity.  It is 
up to the contractor to verify panel capacity and empty receptacles.   Contractor will be 
responsible for a generator if the capacity is not available. 

2. Who is responsible for completing the inspections?  

Answer: Inspections will be daily by the City inspector (Tom Cantrell) and at other key points by 
City Building Officials (as required) and the Architect (as needed). 

3. Who do we contact for additional site visits?  

Answer: Contact Scott Parkins for additional site visits. 

Clarifications and supplemental information: 

A. See attached Pre-bid Conference Meeting notes. 

 

B. See Attachment “A” - Asbestos Management Plan report UT-101, dated January 1989. See SK-1 
for location of ACM floor tile and mastic to be removed for new floor installation. This is the only 
space that requires the contractor to consider ACM for bidding purposes. Any additional ACM 
discovered will be a change in contract amount. 

 
 

 

Company Name:    Address:    Date:   

Authorized Signature:      Title:      

Print Name:     Telephone No.:   Fax No.:   



 

 
Pre-Bid Meeting Conference 
 
Date: 5-9-2016 
 
Owner:  City of Lynchburg (COL) 
 
Project:  Department of Water Resources 

College Hill Water Treatment Plant: Interior Renovations 
   City Project No. 11030-BG 
 
Meeting Location:  College Hill Water Treatment Plant Administration 
Building Conference Room located at 601 Taylor Street Lynchburg VA. 
 
Time:    11:00- 12:00 
 
Architect:  Architectural Partners 
   Comm. No. 11119 
 
Last Day for Submittal of Questions: 9:00 a.m. on May 17, 2016 
 
Bid Date:     May 25, 2016 
      Time: 3:00 pm 
 

The following is a list of items discussed at the Pre-Bid Meeting Conference. 
 

 
1. Attendee Sign-In sheet was circulated and will be posted on City of Lynchburg 

website.   
 

2. Introductions were made. 
 
3. Stephanie Suter (COL) noted that the contract documents, including the 

addenda, are located on the City's web site. http://www.lynchburgva.gov/current-
solicitations. 

 
4. Deadline for bidding related questions submitted to Lisa will be no later than 

9:00 a.m. on May 17, 2016 
 
 

5. Bid opening will be at City Hall, Bidder's Room, Third Floor May 25, 2016 at 
3:00pm. 

 

http://www.lynchburgva.gov/current-solicitations
http://www.lynchburgva.gov/current-solicitations


6. Bid Bond of 5% is required (acknowledge in Bid Form). 
 
7. Contract documents require Certificates of Insurance, Performance & Labor & 

Material Bonds. 
 
8. Stephanie noted there is a $500/day liquidated damages included in this 

contract. 240 calendar days construction period is listed in the Construction 
Agreement. 

 
9. Scott Parkins , City of Lynchburg Utilities engineer, will be the City’s Project 

Manager. Tom Cantrell, City of Lynchburg’s Construction Coordinator will be 
the direct contact for any field issues between the Contractor and the City.   

 
10. Architect & engineers described the construction type, equipment, and 

associated site work for the project. The architects and engineers are located 
within a mile of the project and will be available for reviews, RFI's and ASI's as 
required by the City. 

 
 
11. Mark Smith, architect briefly described the phasing of work and the building 

components. Phasing plans may be adjusted once the contractor has reviewed 
project and can offer alternative phasing/scheduling that if mutually agreed to.  
Key components of the interior building alterations and renovation include, 
minor demolition of non-load bearing walls, new flooring, painting, ceilings, 
lockers, gypsum wallboard partitions and doors. 
 

12. Chris Snyder (mechanical engineer) described the HVAC and plumbing scope of 
work.  It was explained that the HVAC consists of removing selected pieces of 
heating equipment and abandoned fans and ventilators and replacement with 
new heating and air conditioning equipment to add cooling for the renovated 
locker and toilet rooms.  Some existing equipment will remain.  It was explained 
that there will be multiple indoor fan coil units matched to single outdoor units 
with one outdoor unit for areas on each of the two floors served.  During the 
walk through, the proposed locations of the outdoor units was pointed out.  It 
was also explained that the plumbing systems serving the renovated spaces will 
be reworked as necessary to serve new fixtures and largely involves serving new 
fixtures where existing fixtures are to be removed.  Hot water and cold water 
will be tied back into the existing piping and new sanitary piping will be 
installed as necessary to serve the new fixtures with the sanitary piping for the 
2nd floor being installed above the existing finished spaces on the first floor.   

13. Walt Miles (electrical engineer) briefly described the scope of the electrical work 
to include new lighting and power distribution to new HVAC equipment in 
affected areas and to accommodate rearrangement of ceiling light fixtures to 
coordinate with new ceilings.  Panel locations were pointed out during the walk 
through of the building. 
 

 



 
14. Scott noted that access to the site will at the 6th Street entrance (existing loading 

dock to building).  This entrance is available at all times.  If the contractor 
requires access through Taylor Street Chemical Building entrance (opposite side 
of building) this gate can be accessed as well. 
  

15. Dumpster can be located on 6th Street yard. 
 
 

16. Parking and temporary facilities will be made available in close proximity 
(adjacent parking lot) to building site. 

 
 

17. Scott discussed the security restraints associated with the site.  The City requires 
the contractor to sign-in for access. Gate and building access passes will be issued 
for duration of project. 
 
 

18. Contractor has a possible area for lay down area and staging at the yard behind 
525 Taylor side of the site. The existing building has an elevator and loading 
dock which may be suitable for the contractor to access the interior of building 
with materials and equipment. The loading dock can be used on an as-need 
basis. 

 
19. Scott stated that if anyone needs to see the site during the bidding period, please 

call him at (434) 455-4248 to arrange a visit time.  The Owner is encouraging 
contractors to visit the site prior to bidding. 

 
20. It was emphasized that all questions, substitutions, etc… basically all 

communication needs to go through Lisa Moss, at the City of Lynchburg.  This 
information will be submitted to the architects and engineers for response as 
addenda.  No verbal communications are binding. 
 

21. Building permit fee is waived, however, contractor is responsible for permit 
application.  
 
 

22. Question/Answer /Clarification period was given with the following: 
 
 Q: Is there asbestos in the building? 

A: Asbestos Management Plan UT-101 dated January 1989 will be attached to 
Addenda No.1 for the contractor's review.  
 
Q: Has the Code Official reviewed the design?  
A: Mark Smith, architect, will review documents with the City's Building Official 
for any design concerns and review comments prior to permit application.  
 



Q: Is electric provided? Voltage? 
A: Yes. As for voltage, contractor can confirm required voltage during building 
walk-through or during future visit to building. 
 
Q: What are possible working hours? 
A: Normal building operations are 7a.m. - 7p.m. For extended hours of work, the 
building can be used 24-7. 
 

 
1. Meeting was adjourned at 11:30 with a following walk-thru of the site.  

Attendees were allowed to walk the site and the interior of the building. 
Architect, engineers and COL staff were present on-site for contractor's questions 
and comments. 

 
2. End of site visit at approximately 12:30.   
 
3. End of minutes. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mark W. Smith 
Architect 
 
Cc: City of Lynchburg (COL), MEAD,  file 
 
 

ARCHITECTURAL PARTNERS, P.C. 
10 Ninth Street, Lynchburg Virginia 24504 

Phone:434/846-8456 
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